ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 16, 2010
8:07 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Representati ve Paul Seaton, Vice Chair
Representative Carl Gatto
Representati ve Peggy W1 son
Representative Max G uenberg
Representati ve Pete Petersen

MEMBERS ABSENT
Representative Craig Johnson
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 241

"An Act relating to certain investnents of the Al aska permanent
fund, the state's retirement systens, the State of Al aska
Suppl emental Annuity Plan, and the deferred conpensation program
for state enployees in conpanies that do business in Iran, and
restricting those investnents; and providing for an effective
date."

- FAILED TO MOVE HB 241 OQUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 292
"An Act relating to grants to victins of a disaster in this
state; and providing for an effective date."
- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COWM TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 241

SHORT TI TLE: DI VEST | NVESTMENTS | N | RAN
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) GATTO

04/ 18/ 09 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
04/ 18/ 09 (H) STA, FIN

02/ 09/ 10 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 09/ 10 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 09/ 10 (H) M NUTE( STA)

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- February 16, 2010



02/ 16/ 10 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 292
SHORT TITLE: GRANTS TO DI SASTER VI CTI M5
SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNCR

01/ 19/ 10 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 19/ 10 (H) MV, STA, FIN

02/ 02/ 10 (H) M.V AT 1:00 PM BARNES 124

02/ 02/ 10 (H Heard & Held

02/ 02/ 10 (H) M NUTE( MLV)

02/ 04/ 10 (H M.V AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124

02/ 04/ 10 (H Moved Qut of Conmittee

02/ 04/ 10 (H) M NUTE( MLV)

02/ 05/ 10 (H M.V RPT 5DP 1AM

02/ 05/ 10 (H DP: LYNN, T.WLSON, HARRI S, BUCH, GATTO
02/ 05/ 10 (H) AM  KAWASAKI

02/ 16/ 10 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

THOVAS REl KER, St aff

Representative Carl Gatto

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
241, on behalf of Representative Gatto, prine sponsor.

JERRY BURNETT, Deputy Comnmi ssi oner

Treasury Division

Depart nent of Revenue

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 241.

PATRI CK GALVI N, Conmi ssi oner

Depart ment of Revenue

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions during the hearing on HB
241.

McHUGH Pl ERRE, Deputy Conmi ssioner/ Chief of Staff

O fice of the Conm ssioner/ Adjutant General

Departnment of Mlitary & Veterans Affairs

Fort Ri chardson, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented HB 292 on behalf of the House
Rul es Comm ttee, sponsor by request of the governor.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- February 16, 2010



M KE O HARE, Deputy Director

Di vision of Honel and Security/ Energency Managenent

Department of Mlitary & Veterans Affairs

Fort Ri chardson, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: O fered information regarding HB 292, on
behalf of the House Rules Commttee, sponsor by request of the
gover nor.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
8:07:23 AM

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Commttee
nmeeting to order at 8:07 a.m Representatives Seaton, Gatto,
W son, Guenberg, Petersen, and Lynn were present at the call
to order.

HB 241- DI VEST | NVESTMENTS | N | RAN

8:08: 01 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the first order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 241, "An Act relating to certain investnents of the
Al aska pernmanent fund, the state's retirenment systens, the State
of Al aska  Suppl enent al Annuity Pl an, and the deferred
conpensation program for state enployees in conpanies that do
business in Iran, and restricting those investnents; and
providing for an effective date."

[Before the conmmittee was the commttee substitute (CS) for HB
241, Version 26-LS0680\E, Kane, 2/8/10.]

8:.08:41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noved to adopt the conmmttee substitute
(CS) for HB 241, Version 26-LS0680\S, Kane, 2/15/10, as a work
draft.

8. 08: 54 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON obj ected for di scussion purposes.

8:09: 04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO, as prinme sponsor of HB 241, directed

attention to a nenorandum dated 2/15/10 [J[included in the
comm ttee packet], which addresses the changes that were nade in

HOUSE STA COWM TTEE - 3- February 16, 2010



Version S. He reviewed the changes, which would anend AS
37.10.072 as follows: First, Version S would delete the word
"all" from Section 1(d), to guard against msinterpreting the
statute as a mandate for the Departnent of Revenue to
investigate every publically traded conmpany, as opposed to just
those conpanies relating to Alaska' s investnent portfolio.
Second, to elimnate confusion regarding |anguage in Section

1(j)(1)(B)(v), "gasoline and related products” was changed to
"petrol eum products”. Third, new wording was added in Section
1(j)(3), to nore clearly define "direct investnent”. Under the
new | anguage, "direct investnent"” that would be subject to the
$20 mllion threshold for scrutiny "directly and significantly
contributes to the enhancenment of Iran's ability to devel op
petrol eum resour ces, mlitary equi pnent and nucl ear
capabilities". Fourth, a new provision was inserted in Section

1(j)(9)(B), to clarify that, for the purposes of HB 241, a
parent conpany is only responsible for the practices of a
subsidiary or jointly owned conpany in which it holds a
controlling interest. Representative Gatto explained that the
provision was designed to address the concern that the bill
could be broadly read to include any dealings wth a
"scrutinized conpany” or narromy read to exenpt any conpany
that nmerely fornmed a subsidiary to admnister its interests in
I ran.

8:12:13 AM

THOVAS REIKER, Staff, Representative Carl Gatto, Alaska State
Legislature, in response to Representative Guenberg, said the

sponsor and his staff spoke with the bill drafter to ensure that
there were no issues regarding federal law, that the bill
conplies with the Iran Sanctions Act of 1996. Much of the
| anguage in the bill came fromthat federal Act.

8:13: 02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON renoved his objection to the notion to
adopt the commttee substitute (CS) for HB 241, Version 26-
LS0680\'S, Kane, 2/15/10, as a work draft. [ There being no
further objection, Version S was before the conmittee as a work
draft.]

8:13:30 AM
JERRY BURNETT, Deputy Comm ssi oner, Treasury Di vi si on,

Department of Revenue, stated that his job is to admnister the
investnment policies of the Al aska Retirement Board in relation

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- February 16, 2010



to HB 241. He said he is not the fiduciary - the board is, and
the board has not taken any ©position on the proposed
| egislation. He said when, in the past, the House State Affairs
Standing Comrittee considered the issue of divestnent from
Sudan, the discussion was about the ampount of securities held
that would "come under that definition,” and it was in the $13

m | 1lion-range. As of yesterday, he reported, there were close
to a billion dollars of securities that would likely "fall under
this list." He said that is out of $33 billion that is
i nvest ed. About half of the departnment's investnents are in
retirement funds. He said based on the types of current
investnments, he expects "a higher percentage of this is in
retirement funds than in the other.™ M. Burnett told conmttee

menbers he wants them to know the nmagnitude of the proposed
| egi sl ation: approxi mately $750, 000, 000 of funds m ght have to
be divested.

8:15:27 AM
MR. BURNETT, in response to Representative P. WIson, said he

cannot predict whether or not the state would [|ose noney;
however, he noted that there would be transaction costs involved

- about four cents per share of stock. He said, "If you |ook at

an average share price of $20, as an exanple, and you have a
billion dollars worth of stock, you're |ooking at two-hundredths
of a percent of the cost of the stock." He said it is not a

huge cost relative to the value, but potentially this could
affect 5 percent of the holdings of the retirenment funds that
may match the list of conpanies provided by the bill sponsor.
M. Burnett stated, "Depending on the size of our holdings here,
as you trade anything, if you have to do a forced sale you nay
not sell it at the best tinme .... You mght |ose sonme percent
of your value as a result of having to do a forced sale.” M.
Burnett enphasized that he is not to attenpting to influence the
committee one way or the other, he just thinks the nenbers
should have an idea of the nmagnitude of what 1is Dbeing
consi der ed.

8:17: 42 AM

MR. BURNETT, in response to Representative P. WIson, said the
proposed | egi sl ation gives the departnent 90 days to divest from

conpanies on the list. He said this is a doable tinefrane. I n
response to Representative Petersen, he said there are over 400
mat ches spread across 30 funds the state nanages. In response

to a followup question, he said he does not recall which would
be the | argest.

HOUSE STA COWM TTEE - 5- February 16, 2010



REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN surm sed, "So, if you say there's 400 of
them and we've got $900 million, chances are we don't have a
huge hol ding in any one particular stock."

MR. BURNETT replied that the holdings are snmall because the
state diversifies for a nunber of reasons.

8:20: 09 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said he understands when M. Burnett says
the state could | ose nobney; however, asking whether or not the
state will lose noney from divesting is a rhetorical question
He said it may be just as likely that the state would avoid
losing noney by divesting because "half the free world is
selling them"™ He said his point is that divesting should be
done for noral reasons.

8:21:16 AM
MR. BURNETT relayed that in Decenber 2009, the chief investnent

officer wote to a nunber of active fund managers asking about
"hol dings that they had on this," because "we perceive a market

risk from holding stocks that other people put on their list.”
He said Representative Gatto is correct that effects could
happen in both directions. He reiterated that he is not

addressing the good or bad; he is just letting the conmttee
know about the magnitude of the issue.

8:22: 57 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG directed attention to the 90-day
provi sion, which he said does not give the nmanagers of the fund
perm ssion to keep funds on the |list past 90 days. He concl uded
that this nmeans "the only thing this prevents you from doing
potentially froma financial point of view is making noney." He
asked M. Burnett if he concurs.

MR. BURNETT responded, "I think | agree with you on that."

MR. CGRUENBERG said the provision would not prevent the nanagers
of the fund from | osing noney, because "you'd be getting out of
it anyway," but if the managers wanted to keep the stocks for
i nvestment reasons, they could not. He asked M. Burnett if the
managers of the fund would prefer the provision to require "due
del i berate speed” rather than a "hard and fast" deadli ne.

HOUSE STA COWM TTEE - 6- February 16, 2010



MR. BURNETT said he cannot speak to that issue. He said if the
| egislature is serious about doing this, sone deadlines wll

have to be put in place. In response to a followup question
from Representative Guenberg, he opined that 90 days is |ong
enough, because it starts from the tine the list would be
finished, not fromthe tinme the bill would be signed.

8:26: 02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN asked M. Burnett if he |ooked at the
list and recognized any of the conpanies as ones that are
currently doi ng business in Al aska.

8:26:19 AM

MR. BURNETT answered yes, but said he cannot speak to which
conpanies they are, since he does not presently have the |ist
with him

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN suggested that the commttee may want to
consider that if the state divests from conpanies on the |ist
that are presently doing business within Al aska, those conpanies
may choose to pull out fromthe state.

8:26:42 AM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON directed attention to |anguage beginning

on page 2, line 12, mdway through line 16, of Version S, which
read as foll ows:

(c) The comm ssioner shall <create and update
quarterly, before the first day of the immediately
succeedi ng calendar quarter, a list of scrutinized
conpani es.

(d) The comm ssioner shall make reasonabl e

efforts to investigate publicly traded conpanies to
determ ne whether the conmpany is a scrutinized conpany
for the purposes of this section.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he had asked the conm ssioner of the
Department of Revenue to let him know what kind of tinme frane,
burden, or investigative effort would be involved, and at what
cost.

8:28: 04 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- February 16, 2010



PATRI CK GALVI N, Comm ssioner, Departnment of Revenue, reported to
Representative Seaton that he was advised from the Departnent of
Law that the current standard would allow the Departnent of
Revenue to rely upon primarily the list and should not inpose an

undue burden in conplying with the standard. He noted that
since then, the |anguage has inproved with the elimnation of
the word "all"” in relation to publicly traded conpani es.

8:.28:52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said a second question he had asked was in
regard to |anguage on page 2, line 6, of Version S - "other
busi ness structure" - and whether consideration was being given

only to stocks of a publicly traded conpany, or also to a
situation in which Alaska is a partner with the conpany or
provides tax credits to a conpany doing business in the state.

8:30:21 AM

COM SSI ONER GALVIN replied that the Departnent of Law advised
that a conpany not on the scrutinized list doing business in

Al aska would not create violation of bill, but would create a
guestion as to whether the intent of the bill was being fully
est abl i shed. He acknow edged that is a concern that

Representative Petersen just raised.
8:31:14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO directed attention to |anguage on page 2,
line 14, of Version S, which states that the comm ssioner "shal

make reasonable efforts to investigate publicly traded
conmpani es". He asked Comm ssioner @Glvin if he considers the
investigation of the lists currently published a reasonable

effort or thinks the departnent would al so have to nmake separate
i nvesti gations.

8:32: 08 AM

COW SSI ONER GALVIN said the issue the Departnent of Law raised
whi ch caused concern is that the Ilanguage of the bill that
addresses which conmpanies would be on the Alaska scrutinized
list is broader than conpliance wth the federal |aw He said
because the bill is an amal gam of [|anguage from the Sudan
divestiture bill and makes reference to the federal divestiture
law, it creates an additional standard beyond that of a conpany
described in the federal |aw. He said the proposed |egislation
would require further investigation beyond the l|ists, but he

HOUSE STA COWM TTEE - 8- February 16, 2010



said he thinks that could be addressed through an anmendnent
allowing the identification of conpanies that fall under the
description of the federal |aw as conpanies that fall under the
Al aska scrutinized conmpany |ist.

8:33: 36 AM

COWM SSI ONER GALVIN, in response to Representative Gtto, said
if the standard for determ ning whether a conpany should be on
the list or not is the same being applied by others states or

entities in the developnent of their list, then it could be
argued that a "reasonable inquiry" would be to exam ne those
lists to find the comonality. He reiterated that an area of
concern would be if there is a different standard for the Al aska
list. In response to a followup question from Representative
Gatto, he restated that it is the addition of |anguage
apparently from the former Sudan divestiture bill which goes

beyond the federal |aw.
8. 36: 06 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON directed attention to subsection (d),
on page 2, lines 14-17 [text provided previously]. She said the
| anguage does not state that the commissioner nay nmake a
reasonable effort to investigate the public list that other
states have, and she questioned whether it would neke a
di fference to anmend subsection (d).

8:37:23 AM

COW SSI ONER GALVIN responded that he does not think that is
really the issue at hand. He opined that the proposed
requirenent obligating the conmssioner to nake reasonable
inquiries and allowing himher to utilize existing lists is a
reasonabl e approach by which to establish a standard and allow
for a way to comply with that standard. He reiterated that the
i ssue raised by the Departnment of Law could be addressed either
by the House State Affairs Standing Committee or a subsequent
commttee of referral, to identify the federal law as the
controlling aspect of that standard.

8:38: 14 AM

COW SSI ONER GALVIN, in response to Representative P. WIson,
said he does not have a copy of the bill with him but said it
is the section of the bill with the definition of "scrutinized

conpany” which needs to be nore narrowy restricted to sinply

HOUSE STA COWM TTEE - 9- February 16, 2010



identify conpanies that are out of conpliance with the federa
I aw.

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON noted that the definition of
"scrutinized conpany” begins on page 4, line 24, and continues
t hrough page 5, line 1.

8:39:18 AM

MR. BURNETT pointed out that the definition of "business
operations” is found on page 3, beginning on line 12, and he

offered his belief that that is the portion of the bill |anguage
that was inported from the aforenentioned Sudan divestiture
bill. He recomended that the conmttee elimnate the
definition of "busi ness oper ati ons” and identify t he
"scrutinized conpanies” as those engaging in any and all
busi ness [operations] that are subject or liable to sanctions

under Public Law 104-172.
8:40: 48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON directed attention to |anguage on page 2,
lines 23-31, subsections (e) and (f), which read as foll ows:

(e) The conmm ssioner shall provide witten notice
and an opportunity to comment in witing to each
conpany identified as a scrutinized conmpany under (d)
of this section.

(f) The comm ssioner shall add a conpany identified
under (d) of this section to the list of scrutinized
conpanies not earlier than 90 days after providing
witten notice under (e) of this section, unless the
conpany denonstrates to the conm ssioner that it does
not conduct or have direct investnments in business
operations in Iran that exceed the $20,000, 000
threshold referred to in Public Law 104-172 (lran
Sanctions Act of 1996), as anended.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked M. Burnett if he interprets this
| anguage to nmean that even if the departnent relies on a |ist,
it would have to notify each conpany in witing and give each an
opportunity to coment.

8:41: 42 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- February 16, 2010



MR. BURNETT said he believes the departnent would have to

identify a potential list, notify the conpanies and give them a
chance to respond, identify a final |ist, and demand divestiture
from all the fund managers based on that |ist. He said this

plan would result in divestiture from any conpany on the |ist
that is part of the fund, not any conpany that is not part of
the fund. He stated, "W do have nore conpanies that do
business in Iran than Sudan, for sure." He remarked, "There's
nothing that prevents us from divesting from any conpany at any
time if it's a good business decision.™

8:43: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON stated his intention is that the state may
abide by a list, while still providing due process under the
Constitution of the State of Al aska to the conmpanies invol ved.

8:44: 47 AM

COMM SSIONER GALVIN clarified that neither the Departnent of
Revenue nor the Al aska Retirenment Managenent (ARM Board nor the
Al aska Permanent Fund Board would have the authority to
i ndependently inplenment a divestiture policy, wth regard to
Iran, without the statutory authority to do so, which is why a
bill, such as HB 241, would be necessary to put in place an Iran
di vestiture policy.

8:45:55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked whether there is any possible
| egal argunent a conpany could use to say it has sone right to
"sone kind of relief® that is granted under HB 241. He
guestioned whether it should be specified in the bill that
conpani es woul d not have that right to a hearing, for exanple.

8:47:57 AM

COWMM SSI ONER GALVI N responded that the issue is not so nuch one
of due process. He said this is a matter of fairness. He
opined that if a conpany is going to be identified publicly as
being unworthy of Alaska's investnent, the state owes that
conpany the right to say that the state got the facts wong and
to prove that the conpany does not belong on the list. He said
he thinks there may [enphasis on "may"] be sone exposure wth
regard to slander or liable or sonme sort of interference "with
their other contractual relationships”" if the proposed law is
fol | oned. For that reason, he said, it is in the interest of

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- February 16, 2010



the state to ensure that the departnent has provided those
conpanies with the opportunity to clarify whether or not they
bel ong on the list.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG said the board of a targeted conpany
may be concerned about everybody dunping its stock. He said he
hopes that the bill sponsor seriously considers including
| anguage in the bill that would prevent a conpany from using
Al aska as a forumto justify its actions and not only delay the
process, but also "gumup the works in other states."”

CHAIR LYNN said, "They could challenge that; we can't tel
sonebody el se what their rights are.”

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG enphasi zed, "W can tell them what
their rights are under this Act, absolutely. W do it all the
time; we limt liability."

8:51:12 AM

REPRESENTATIVE GATTO returned to the conment made by
Comm ssioner Galvin that wi thout statutory authority, the boards
determ ning which stocks to buy or sell would have no authority
to make a policy regarding divestiture fromlran, and he said it
i s understandabl e. However, he asked if that sane board of
directors, upon observing that those conpanies on scrutinized
lists are "having a downward pressure from nmany states, the
federal governnent, and from other conpanies,” would be able to
make a policy without statutory authority that maintains that
those stocks are risky because they are nore likely to |ose
val ue than to gain val ue.

8:52:17 AM

COWM SSI ONER GALVIN said the answer, in general, would be yes
if it was determined there would be |ikely market novenent in
regard to certain stocks, the boards could utilize that as a way
to avoid conpanies that have that type of risk profile. He
noted that beyond the Iran divestiture issue, there is a
t remendous anount of other novenent towards divestiture policies
for a variety of reasons that would have to also be scrutinized
and evaluated to determ ne whether they would have a legitimte
i npact on the market.

8:53: 50 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- February 16, 2010



COWMM SSI ONER  GALVI N, in response to a question from
Representative Gatto as to whether the federal governnment would
prohibit states frominvesting in conpanies that invest in Iran,
offered his understanding that the furthest U S. Congress has
gone in inposing divestiture is in |anguage that shielded states
from actions under prudent investor requirenents associated with

a Sudan divestiture policy. He said the |anguage stated there
was a safe harbor for inposing a divestiture policy that was to
be protected under federal |[aw He concluded, "I guess it's
possi bl e; although you have to think about federal i sm

constitutional issues there."
8:55: 15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO remarked that the enbargo with Cuba shows
that the federal government has the ability to inpose
restrictions on the whole country.

COWM SSI ONER GALVIN offered his understanding that a requirenent
simlar to that for Cuba is in place for Iran, which is why
there is no direct investnent by Anerican conpanies in lran or
materials supplied fromthe U S. to Iran

8:56: 00 AM

CHAIR LYNN stated his wish to have any necessary anmendnents made
and a notion nmade to nove HB 241 today.

8:56: 33 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said HB 241 proposes a sanction on "a
conpany,” and he said he anticipates that to be problemtic and
asked the conm ssioner to comrent.

CHAIR LYNN said he wonders if any other state has addressed this
guesti on.

8:57:47 AM

COM SSIONER  GALVIN told Representative Seaton that t he
departnment did wutilize the Departnent of Law extensively in
devel oping the process that is wused here, Dbecause it was
borrowed from the Sudan divestiture bill. He said the
Departnment of Law advised that the Departnent of Revenue
include a provision to ensure it neets its obligations to the
conpanies that may be on the I|ist. He said he does not think
the departnent specifically received the conclusion that there

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 13- February 16, 2010



was a constitutional right to due process; however, he said he
thinks it was an issue of ensuring that the departnent did not
expose itself wunnecessarily to clains either of that nature or
other violations of their rights. In response to Chair Lynn's
guestion as to whether other states have addressed this issue in
their divestiture legislation, he said he is not aware of other
states' processes on this issue. He asked M. Burnett if he
knew of any other states that have addressed this question.

CHAI R LYNN noted that M. Burnett shook his head no.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON questioned if not allowing a conpany the
opportunity to change would be renoving the main inpetus of the
bill to have conpani es change their behavior.

CHAIR LYNN comented that he does not think the proposed
legislation is directed toward changing the behaviors of
different conpanies, but rather is an issue of nationa
security.

9:00: 15 AM

COM SSIONER GALVIN responded that the whole purpose of a
divestiture policy is to keep conpanies from providing support
for the targeted country. The intent, therefore, would not
necessarily be to do so solely through divestiture action,
because a divestiture of stock does not directly affect the
conpany itself. It is the act of placing a conpany on a |ist
and putting it up for public scrutiny as a conpany that is
engaged in what the U S. considers to be inproper behavior that
is an attenpt to notivate that conpany's behavioral change. For
that reason, he said, he supports Representative Seaton's
coorment that if the purpose of the proposed bill is to hold
conpanies up to that kind of scrutiny and to give them the
opportunity to change their behavior and prove they should no
| onger be on the list, then the state should probably provide
those conpanies wth the nmeans for "making the change in
behavi or effective for that purpose.”

9:01: 54 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CRUENBERG said he thinks the comittee 1is
flagging this issue, and he expressed his hope that the
departrment will work with the Departnent of Law to ensure that
"this isn't used as a forum by these conpanies" and to prevent
del ays frominjunctions.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- February 16, 2010



9:02:41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated his assunption that t he
department would work on an anmendnent related to the definition
| anguage.

COW SS|I ONER GALVI N confirmed that is correct.

9:03: 06 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG directed attention to |anguage on page
3, lines 9-10, which gives the commi ssioner authority to adopt
regul ations under AS 44.62 "to carry out the purposes of the
section.” He noted that Sections 2 and 3, on page 5, are
"directing the retirenent boards to conply wth this." He

stated his assunption that those boards ~currently have
regul atory authority to carry out the purposes of this section

and it is not necessary to put simlar |anguage in Sections 2
and 3 as is found in the aforenentioned |anguage on page 3,
lines 9-10.

9:04: 12 AM

MR. BURNETT responded as foll ows:

Regul ations are to ... <carry out the purposes in
adopting the [list. The ... Alaska Retirenent
Managenent Board and the Permanent Fund are to follow
this list and divest. They shouldn't need specific
regulatory authority in this bill. They have

regul atory authority for their purposes within their
statute, so they would be able to adopt regulations
under their general regulatory authority.

9:04: 56 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG directed attention to Section 6, on
page 6, which would required notice by the Departnment of Law to
the U S. Attorney General. He remarked that that is unusual
and asked why that requirement is in the proposed |egislation.

MR BURNETT said he is not certain of the answer to that

guesti on. Not wi t hstanding that, he surm sed that there may be
sonmething in federal |aw

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG asked for that information to Dbe
provi ded.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 15- February 16, 2010



9:07:24 AM

COM SSIONER GALVIN, in response to Representative P. WIson,

said he does not expect the conpanies put on the list to
respond, because, in general, they wll not want to put their
activities and involvenment in Iran up for public scrutiny. He
stated, "Unless ... we have our facts wong, and they do not
have engagenent in the activities that led to them being listed
by other states, | don't expect to hear back fromthe conpany."”
9:08: 09 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN stated his belief that the purpose of
the proposed bill is not to punish any of the conpanies in which
the state has invested. He said the reason the U S. CGovernnent
has, in the past, put sanctions on another nation has been to
effect change in that nation's behavior. He opined that in nost
cases that has not been very effective; however, starting sone
sort of mlitary conflict mght be a worse alternative.

9:09: 48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO directed attention to |anguage on page 3,
lines 12-14, which read as foll ows:

(1) "business operations”
(A means  power production activities,
m neral extraction activities, oil-related activities,
or the production of mlitary equi prment;

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noted that the subject of m ner al
extraction appears again on page 4. He asked Comm ssioner
Glvin if it would be helpful to adopt a conceptual anmendnent
that woul d del ete subparagraph (A) and the related text on page
4. He said he does not want to create additional chores that
woul d require additional personnel, but he wants to ensure that
the list is observed.

COWM SSI ONER GALVIN said that conceptually "that does bring it
closer to alignnment with ... the federal Act and would meke it
easier to inplenent."

9:11: 05 AM

MR. BURNETT suggested renoving | anguage in Section 1, subsection
(j), paragraphs (1), and paragraphs (3) through (8).

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 16- February 16, 2010



9:12:52 AM
CHAI R LYNN cl osed public testinony.
9:13:01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO indicated his concurrence with sone of the
del eti ons reconmmended by M. Burnett.

9:13: 47 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noved to adopt Conceptual Anmendnent 1, to
del ete the | anguage in subparagraph (A), on page 3, |lines 13-14,
and the |language on page 4, |lines 3-23. There being no
obj ection, Conceptual Anendnent 1 was adopt ed.

9:14: 33 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to adopt Conceptual Amendnent 2, as
fol | ows:

On page 4, line 25:

Fol | owi ng "conpany”

Del ete "engaging in any and all active business
operations that are subject or"

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON explained, "It takes us back to the
federal list and elimnates the burden to investigate nonprofit
lists and ot her things."

CHAIR LYNN asked if there was any objection to Conceptual
Amendnent 2. There being no objection, it was so ordered.

9:15:53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noved to report CSHB 241, Version 26-
LS0680\'S, Kane, 2/15/10, as anended, out of commttee wth
i ndi vi dual recommendati ons and the acconpanying fiscal notes.

9:16:16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON obj ect ed. He said there has been n xed
i nformation given. For exanple, he stated that there has been
testinmony purporting that weapons are being supplied by Iran [to
terrorists], and he said there is no evidence to support that.
Representative Seaton said he has heard testinony given by

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- February 16, 2010



mlitary commanders before the U S. Congress via GC SPAN that
Iran could be nuch nore unhel pful than it currently is. He said
the Pakistani side of the border is the one that has nuclear

weapons. He stated, "The basis for this bill is evidence that |
don't think we have on the table here.” He enphasized that he
is not speaking in support of Iran; he said he has friends who,
15 years ago, barely escaped Iran. Representati ve Seaton

reiterated that he thinks the comrittee needs accurate
information in order to determne whether to support the
proposed | egi sl ati on.

9:20: 49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. W LSON said she does not want the bill to pass
out of comittee w thout making changes to the part of the
proposed legislation addressing the responsibilities of the
conm ssi oner.

The commttee took an at-ease from 9:21:57 AMto 9:22:48 AM

9:22:55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON renoved his objection to the notion to
report CSHB 241, Version 26-LS0680\S, Kane, 2/15/10, as anended,
out of commttee wth individual recomendations and the
acconpanyi ng fiscal notes.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO withdrew his notion to report CSHB 241,
Version 26-LS0680\S, Kane, 2/15/10, as amended, out of conmittee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not es.

9:23: 49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON noved to adopt Conceptual Anmendnent 3,
as foll ows:

On page 2, line 15:
Foll owi ng "whether the conpany is a scrutinized

conpany"
Del ete "for the"
Insert "on a list of any of the states”

On page 2, lines 16-22:
Delete all materi al

9: 24: 50 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- February 16, 2010



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON objected for discussion purposes. He
offered his understanding that a previous notion resulted in
making a scrutinized conpany one that is liable to sanctions
under federal |aw Addi ng other states' [lists], he opined,
woul d increase the burden of the comm ssioner of the Departnent
of Revenue to "bal ance between different conpanies.”

REPRESENTATI VE P. W LSON asked, "So, we just need to delete that
whol e section then?"

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said, "W've al ready nade..."

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON interjected, "But this contradicts
t hat. "

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO responded, "I don't see it that way."
9:26: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE = PETERSEN suggested the following |anguage:
"determ ne whet her the conpany is on the federal |ist".

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON agreed that a period could be placed after
"scrutinized conpany”, since that term has already been defined
as a conpany on the federal list, and all subsequent | anguage,
as outlined in Conceptual Amendment 3, could be del et ed.

9:26:43 AM

MR. REIKER related that there is no federal list, only federa
criteria with which conpanies should be scrutinized. St at es
create their own lists based on that federal criteria. He

relayed that currently Florida, Chio, and Utah have the npst
expansive |ists.

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON nmaintained her notion to adopt
Conceptual Amendnent 3.

9:27:41 AM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON renoved his objection.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if the word "scrutinized" includes
the states' |ists.

MR. REI KER responded yes.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- February 16, 2010



9:28:10 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO objected to Conceptual Amendnent 3 for
clarification.

9:28: 23 AM

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON restated the changes proposed in
Conceptual Amendnent 3.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO renmarked that it is scrutinized conpanies
that are on the list of any of the states; therefore, the
inserted | anguage in Anendnent 3 is redundant.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he does not think it would be
redundant, because anong the |anguage that would be deleted by
Conceptual Anmendment 3 is paragraph (1), which lists nonprofit
organi zations, research firms, and international organizations
as sources for lists that could be used by the comm ssioner. He
said Conceptual Amendnment 3 would narrow the breadth of the
i ssues that the Departnent of Revenue woul d have to consider

9:29:52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG [ nodded]. He offered his understanding
that "that's defined in Title I."

9:30: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON noted that with Conceptual Amendnent 3,
t he | anguage woul d read as foll ows:

(d) The comm ssi oner shal | make reasonabl e
efforts to investigate publicly traded conpanies to
determ ne whether the company is a scrutinized conpany
on a list of any other state.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that the term "state" is defined
in AS 01.10.060(13).

REPRESENTATIVE GATTO renoved his objection to Conceptua
Amrendnent 3.

9:31:13 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- February 16, 2010



MR. REIKER said it is inportant for paragraph (1) to remain in

the bill. He explained that other states use two nonprofit
organi zations and two research firms to determne which
conpani es should be on the list, and although Al aska could

change its list to match, "that could be challenged, because
they' re using research firnms and nonprofit organizations."

9: 31: 58 AM

CHAIR LYNN remnded everyone that this is a conceptua
amendnent .

9:32: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO clarified that the |anguage that would be
del eted through Conceptual Amendnment 3 would include paragraph

(1).
9:32:38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG interpreted M. Reiker's comments to
mean that if two non-profit organizations and two research firns
agree, than a conpany wll be put on that state's |Iist.
However, he offered a hypothetical situation in which another
state passes a law that does not use the sanme procedure, which
neans that state could add a nunber of conpanies [to its |ist]
that are not on the recognized Iist. He said that could be
probl emati c.

9:33:47 AM

REPRESENTATI VE  P. WLSON comented that she thinks the
conm ssioner is smart enough to not use a list that is wldly
erratic.

9:34: 01 AM

CHAIR LYNN asked if there was any further objection to
Conceptual Amendnment 3. No further objection was stated,;
t herefore, Conceptual Anendnment 3 was adopt ed.

9:34:12 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noved to report CSHB 241, Version 26-

LS0680\S, Kane, 2/15/10, as anended, out of conmttee wth
i ndi vi dual recommendati ons and t he acconpanyi ng fiscal notes.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- February 16, 2010



9:34: 29 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON obj ect ed.

9:34: 33 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN said although the adopted anmendnents
i nproved the proposed |egislation, he does not think HB 241 is

quite ready to nove. He said he would |like to get feedback from
Legi sl ative Legal and Research Services.

9:35:18 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he told the sponsor he would vote
to nove the bill, but said he thinks it needs a | ot of work.
CHAIR LYNN, in response to a question from Representative

Pet ersen, offered his understanding that the final comittee of
referral for HB 241 is the House Finance Commttee.

9: 36: 38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he does not think the House State
Affairs Standing Conmittee should be sending substantive issues

to the House Finance Conmmttee to decide. Anot her issue he
pointed out is that while the bill proposes divestiture, the
state would still be able to have a partnership with the sane
conpani es.
9:37:27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said the proposed bill has been thoroughly
reviewed and anended, and has been nmade easy for the
comm ssioner; it is not a difficult bill. He related that
Secretary of State Hillary Cinton has said Iran is on its way
to becoming a mlitary dictatorship. He said he does not think
anyone sitting on the commttee would say that Iran just wants

"sone peaceful nuclear energy.” He said he cannot support
sitting idly and hoping that things go well "over there." He
stated that the only effect of the bill would be that the

investnments that may earn or lose noney would have to be
switched to other investnents that could earn or | ose noney.

9:40: 08 AM

CHAIR LYNN said as co-sponsor of HB 241, he thinks the proposed
| egislation is both practical and noral. He said the practica

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- February 16, 2010



basis is that "they" are apparently involved in a nuclear
weapons program which is a direct threat to [the United

St ates]. He said "they" have threatened to annihilate |srael,
and if an attenpt was nade to do so, the U S. would be dragged
into the mddle of Wrld War 111, Regarding the issue of

norality, Chair Lynn said everything he has heard or read has
shown that "they" are taking action that directly affects U S
Troops in Iran. He said he thinks HB 241 is a snmall step toward
national security. Chair Lynn asked, "Wuld we be having this
sanme di scussion about divesting investnments in the railroad that
took Jews to Auschwtz?" He said he thinks this is the sane
basi c i ssue.

9:41: 49 AM

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Gatto, G uenberg,
and Lynn voted in favor of reporting for HB 241, Version 26-
LS0680\S, Kane, 2/15/10, as anended, out of conmttee wth
i ndi vi dual recomrendations and the acconpanying fiscal notes.
Representatives Seaton, WIson, and Petersen voted against it.
Therefore, the proposed commttee substitute (CS) for HB 241,
Version 26-LS0680\S, Kane, 2/15/10, as anended, failed to be
reported out of conmittee by a vote of 3-3.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to form a subcomittee.
REPRESENTATI VE GATTO obj ect ed.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG w thdrew the motion to form a
subconmi tt ee.

HB 292- GRANTS TO DI SASTER VI CTI M5

9:43: 07 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the final order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 292, "An Act relating to grants to victinse of a
di saster in this state; and providing for an effective date."

9:43: 43 AM

McHUGH Pl ERRE, Deputy Comm ssioner/Chief of Staff, Ofice of the
Comm ssi oner/ Adj utant General, Departrment of MIlitary & Veterans
Affairs, presented HB 292 on behalf of the House Rules
Comm ttee, sponsor by request of the governor. He said the
departnment gives out two disaster-related grants. One is for
public assistance, for exanple, to cover public utilities or

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -23- February 16, 2010



city infrastructure after a declared disaster. The ot her grant
is given to individual households and has a cap of $5,000. That
cap has not changed since 1977. M. Pierre noted that $5,000 in
1977 is equal to $18,000 in 2010. The proposed bill would
adjust the anount of the cap to connect it with the consuner
price index; it would be half of what the federal governnent
gives out during a disaster, which he opined is a reasonable
anount of noney. M. Pierre deferred to M. O Hare for further
det ai | s.

9:45: 26 AM

M KE O HARE, Deput y Di rector, Di vi si on of Honel and
Security/ Enmergency Managenent, Departnment of MIlitary & Veterans
Affairs, offered information regarding HB 292, on behalf of the
House Rules Committee, sponsor by request of the governor. He
stated that the proposed Ilegislation wuld nodernize the
i ndi vi dual assistance grant program to the current econony. He
said the departnent set up a nulti-agency task force to
determne what, if any, increase is needed. The [task force]
was conprised of a diverse group of individuals, including those
from the Departnment of Commerce, Comunity, & Economc
Devel opnent, the Departnment of Health and Social Services,
Al aska Voluntary Organizations Active in Disaster (AKVOAD), the
Al aska Housing Finance Corporation, the American Red Cross, the
United States Depart ment Agriculture (USDA), and rural
or gani zati ons. The nodel fornulated by the task force would
make the grant cap half of the federal individual assistance,
which fluctuates with the econony through the consumer price
i ndex. Currently, the maximum for the federal individual
assistance grant is approximately $30,000; therefore, the
proposed grant from the State of Al aska would be approximtely
$15, 000.

9:47:37 AM

MR. O HARE said this proposed |egislation cane about after the
devastating floods in Interior Al aska in 2009, which affected 40
comunities along the Yukon-Kuskokwi m Ri vers. These residents,
he reported, received federal individual assistance up to the
$30, 000 maxi mum He said there were approximately 30 victins of
the disaster in those communities who were not eligible because
they were not in that federally declared zone, and all the State
of Alaska was able to give those people was $5,000, which was
i nsufficient. M. OHare reiterated that wunder the proposed
| egislation, during a state-declared disaster, the governor
would be allowed to provide up to half the [amount of the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- February 16, 2010



federal] individual assistance grant program to those affected
in the disaster.

9:48: 39 AM

MR. Pl ERRE enphasized that the state adheres to a strict and
stringent process by which it hands out the grant noney. For
exanpl e, people are not automatically given the nmaxi num anmount.
O the households affected in a disaster, about 30 percent
receive the maxinmum allowable anmount, which M. Pierre
reiterated is currently $5, 000. He explained that the noney is
given in an effort to get people back on their feet to rebuild
their honmes and |ives. He offered further details related to
the determnation of how nuch nobney a person is awarded. A
person who has noney in the bank and is prepared for a disaster
may not receive any noney at all, for exanple.

9:49:36 AM

MR. O HARE said the departnent interviews victins and reviews
phot ographs to determ ne whether the victim does not have the
capability to make him herself whole again wthout financial
hel p.

9:50:24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG related his understanding that there
have been no clains under the state fund since the first of
2010. He then opined that it is not enough to increase the
amount given by the state to one half of that given by the
federal governnment. He said the people who need noney have been
"W ped out” and are left with nothing. He asked why the cap is
proposed to be half, and he said he is prepared to offer an
amendnent to increase the anount to "the maxi num"™

9:51:12 AM

MR. O HARE answered that the concept of state declared disaster
is "a smaller version of a federally declared disaster.”
Furthernore, state declared disasters happen nore often. He
stated that the concept of giving noney is an opportunity to
help in part of the process of a victimbeing whol e again.

9:52: 09 AM

MR. Pl ERRE added that the nobney the state pays cones through its
di saster relief fund, which is not supported by the federal

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 25- February 16, 2010



gover nment . It would not be wuntil a federal disaster is

declared that the State of Al aska would receive federal support,

and then it would be federal dollars that would be given as

i ndi vi dual assistance to the victins. He stated, "A household
could not doubl e-dip."

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG remarked that the fiscal note is about
$600, 000.

9:52: 57 AM

MR O HARE, in response to Representative Guenberg, said the
fiscal note is speculative, because disasters cannot Dbe
anticipated. He said the fiscal note reflects the increase from
the original $5,000 to an approximte $15, 000. He indicated
that in one disaster, only 30-35 percent of applicants qualified
for the maxi mum $5, 000. The aforenentioned taskforce has said
the best nodel to follow would be half of the federal anount.

9:54: 46 AM

MR. PIERRE, in response to Representative G uenberg, enphasized
that the nunmbers of disaster victins affected would not be
changed by the proposed |egislation. The nunbers showi ng on the
fiscal note, he said, have been a good average since 2002. He
said changing the amobunt of the state's grant cap to equal that
of the federal grant would double the fiscal note. He related
that Al aska experiences 5-6 state disasters per year, and he
reiterated that not all of those disasters are eligible for
federal assistance. To illustrate his point, M. Pierre relayed
that in 2009, there were two disasters declared by the President
of the United States, while Al aska declared 3-4 state disasters.
M. Pierre stated that the one federally declared disaster was a
mud slide in Kodiak that was "not eligible for individual
assistance" - it was "only a public assistance disaster.”

MR PIERRE explained that in sonme disasters, only public

assistance - for roads and utilities - is awarded; public
assi stance, he renm nded the comrttee, is not awarded for damage
of individual hones. The bill addresses those who have
experience danage to their hones. He said the departnent
heavily enphasizes being proactive wth the conmunity and
l ending a hand, rather than a full handout. He said there are

representatives from the departnment who travel to communities
that typically experience flooding to ask residents if they have

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- February 16, 2010



foll owed prevention tactics. The enphasis is in ensuring the
safety of these people.

9:57:22 AM

MR. PIERRE, in response to Representative Seaton, confirmed that
the fiscal note reflects the difference between the current
average and the proposed anount.

MR O HARE, in response to Representative Seaton, related that
in the past two-three years, the Alaska State Legislature had
the vision to forward-fund the disaster relief fund. Currently,
there are approximately $100,000 left in that fund. He added
that the departnent nust obtain permssion from the |egislature
to spend nore than $1 mllion per disaster. The departnent has
"a very good neasure of cappi ng expenditures” and a
responsibility to provide its finance plan to the |egislature.

9:59: 27 AM

MR. PIERRE, in response to a concern expressed by Representative
Gatto, said the state is not discrimnating between rural and
urban residents. He explained that there are two types of
di sasters described in statute: AS 26.26, which addresses
natural disasters, and AS 26.44, which addresses economc
di sast ers. He said economc disasters are handled by the
Department of Conmmerce, Conmunity, & Economic Devel oprent.
Communities that experience disaster file a declaration to the
state. The state analyzes the declaration, and, if warranted,
hol ds a disaster policy cabinet to determ ne whether or not to
declare a state disaster based on the | ocal response. The state
woul d ask the federal governnent for help once it has spent all
its resources.

MR. O HARE, in response to a hypothetical exanple of a chem ca
spill disaster offered by Representative GGtto, echoed M.
Pierre's outline of the steps that would be taken, first by the
community, next by the state, and finally by the federal
government, as necessary. He stated, "Wiat we're tal king about

here is ... individual assistance for the recovery of the
di saster.™ If the chemcal spill had resulted in the death of
famly nenbers, the state could give noney to help pay for
funeral costs. If the hypothetical spill had affected the

homes, the grant noney coul d be applied.

10: 03: 46 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- February 16, 2010



CHAI R LYNN announced that HB 292 was held over.

10: 04: 24 AM

ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at 10:04
a.m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -28- February 16, 2010



